
	A Moment in Time Daily Transcript - 08-039 Grigori Potemkin II 
08-039 Grigori Potemkin II 

Lead: In 1787 Russian Field Marshall Grigori Potemkin organized a tour of southern Russia for Catherine the Great. It was among the most lavish royal tours in Russian history. 
Intro: A Moment In Time with Dan Roberts. 
Content: Grigori Potemkin was an ambitious young military officer when he took part in the palace coup that deposed Peter III, the estranged husband of Catherine the Great. As a reward for his skill and loyalty, Catherine made Potemkin a member of her court. He became infatuated with her. When the first war with Turkey broke out in 1768, Potemkin returned to the military and served in the cavalry, rising to the rank of major general. For his distinguished service at the end of the war, Catherine made Potemkin a count and the two began a two-year affair. She said of him, "He is one of the greatest, most bizarre, and most entertaining eccentrics of this iron age." Even after the end of their romantic liaison, Potemkin remained one of Catherine's most powerful, capable and influential advisors. When she annexed the Crimea, thus expanding Russia's borders on the Black Sea, Potemkin served as governor of the new province and developed its infrastructure. Anxious to demonstrate his expertise, Potemkin organized a visit by the empress to the Crimea in 1787. 
The tour, a most lavish and costly event, was planned over four years and covered a distance of a thousand miles. All along the way, Catherine gazed out on seemingly happy peasants lining the shores of the Dnieper River. Critics accused Potemkin of creating fake villages, shams, between which fake peasants were transported back and forth to impress the empress. Thus, the term "Potemkin village" entered the cultural discourse. It came to mean a political façade used to cover unseemly conditions. 
The producer of A Moment In Time is Steve Clark. At the University of Richmond, this is Dan Roberts. 
Resources 
"Catherine the Great." Microsoft Encarta Online Encyclopedia 2001 http://encarta.msn.com (20 March 2002). 
Cronin, Vincent. Catherine, Empress of all the Russians. New York: William Morrow and Co., Inc., 1978. 
De Madriaga, Isabel. Catherine the Great, A Short History. New Haven: Yale University Press, 1990. 
Durant, Mary. "Catherine's Boat Ride." Horizons. Vol. 8, no. 4 (1966): 98-104. 
"Potemkin, Grigori Aleksandrovich." The Columbia Electronic Encyclopedia, Sixth Edition, 2001, Columbia University Press, www.bartleby.com 
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	A Moment in Time Daily Transcript - 14-020 Sarah Bernhardt 
14-020 Sarah Bernhardt 


Lead: On March 23, 1923, thousands of mourners lined the streets of 
Paris for the funeral procession of one of the leading actresses of the 19th century, “The Devine Sarah Bernhardt.” 
Intro.: A Moment in Time with Dan Roberts. 
Content: She was born in Paris in 1844 as Henriette-Rosine Bernard. Her Dutch mother was a courtesan, a highly paid prostitute; her father was unknown. A sickly child, the girl was educated in a convent until one of her mother’s lovers, the Duc de Morny--Emperor Napoleon III’s half brother--arranged for the sixteen-year-old Sarah to attend the Paris Conservatoire, the government-sponsored school of theatre. 
Two years later Sarah was accepted as a student at the Comédie-Francaise, the prestigious French national theatre company. She and the Comédie parted company in 1863 after Sarah slapped a leading actress who was rude to Sarah’s younger sister. In such circumstances it is not surprising that Sarah should follow her mother into world’s oldest profession while she worked on her acting career. She had a series of liaisons with famous and powerful men, including Henri, Prince of Ligne--the father of her only child, Maurice. 
In 1866, Sarah’s life took a dramatic turn when she signed a contract with a left-bank theater, Théatre l’Odéon. Over the next six years Sarah worked hard to perfect her craft. This paid off as these skills catapulted her into international stardom. She approached classical and serious roles with extraordinary emotional and physical realism. She considered the voice the key to dramatic performance and critics responded by calling hers "voix d’or" or "golden voice," or "sonorous as pure crystal," or "a caress that strokes you like fingers, so pure, so tender, so harmonious." 
In 1872, following her acclaimed performance as Queen Marie in Victor Hugo’s play "Ruy Blas," a star was born. In constant demand for classical and romantic roles in Europe and the United States, she did nine American tours and even appeared several times in the new medium of motion pictures. At age seventy, Sarah’s leg was amputated, but she continued to act until her death in 1923 at the age of 78. 
Research assistance by Ann Johnson, at the University of Richmond, this is Dan Roberts. 
Resources 
Bernhardt, Sarah. My Double Life: The Memoirs of Sarah Bernhardt. Albany: State University of New York Press, 1999. 
Gold, Arthur. Devine Sarah: A Life of Sarah Bernhardt. New York: Knopf, 1991. 
Harris, Joseph A. “The Devine Sarah.” Smithsonian August 2001: 69-75. 
http://www.sarahbernhardt.com 
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	A Moment in Time Daily Transcript - 07-082 Saint Patrick I 
07-082 Saint Patrick I 


Lead: In the waning years of the Roman Empire, a young boy from Britain was kidnapped and enslaved in Ireland--an event that would change the course of religious history. 
Intro: A Moment in Time with Dan Roberts. 
Content: One of the world's most successful Christian missionaries was born about 389, probably in southwestern Britain. His name was Patrick and his father was a prominent landowner and community leader. He was brought up in a Christian environment, but not one noted for its piety. It was a time of great stress and historical transition. The Roman Empire, which for centuries had provided political, commercial and military cohesion for western Europe, was disintegrating. 
When Patrick was about sixteen he was captured by raiders or pirates from Ireland and sold into slavery in the northwestern part of the island. There, near modern Kilalla in the north of County Mayo, for six years he worked as a shepherd in the herds of an Irish chieftain. It was during this time that he began developing and drawing upon unusually deep spiritual resources. Looking back, he would write that prayer became a regular basis of comfort in his captivity. 
In the sixth year of his enslavement, Patrick received what he later described as divine instruction by which a voice directed him to escape--and do so by ship. He selected the right moment, slipped away, and traveled two hundred miles on foot to the coast of the Irish Sea, where he secured passage on a ship that evidence indicates was sailing to Gaul, the Roman name for what became France. Other sources suggest that Patrick immediately returned to his home in Britain and received a rather primitive and conservative education based on the Latin Bible, leading to the priesthood. 
Next Time: The former slave returns to Ireland. 
The Producer of A Moment in Time is Steve Clark. At the University of Richmond, this is Dan Roberts. 
Resources 
Cahill, Thomas. How the Irish Saved Civilization: The Untold Story of Ireland's Heroic Role from the Fall of Rome to the Rise of Medieval Europe. New York: Doubleday, 1996. 
Cagney, Mary. "Patrick the Saint." Christian History, 60.XVII, No. 4 (1998): 10-18. 
"Catholic Online Saints," http://saints.catholic.org/faq.html 
McSorley, Anita McGurn. "The St. Patrick You Never Knew." St. Anthony Messenger Magazine, March 1997. 
"Patrick, Saint." Microsoft Encarta Online Encyclopedia 2001, http://encarta.msn.com (14 Sept. 2001). 
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	A Moment in Time Daily Transcript - 07-083 Saint Patrick II 
07-083 Saint Patrick II 

Lead: Sometime after the year 431, a priest named Patrick returned to his roots and became one of the most successful missionaries in religious history. 
Intro: A Moment in Time with Dan Roberts. 
Content: The priest known to us today as Saint Patrick, the patron saint of Ireland, spent six years there as a boy after Irish raiders kidnapped him in Britain and sold him into slavery. He escaped from Ireland and eventually returned to his home, where he received a rather primitive monastic education and became a priest. 
Sometime later Patrick received his call--through voices in a dream, he said--to return to Ireland as a missionary. There he spent the rest of his life, probably a period of thirty years. Concentrating on northwest Ireland where Christianity was unknown, Patrick gained the respect of several tribal leaders and converted many to Christianity. He had strong diplomatic skills. Recognizing the entrenched cultic power of the native Celtic religion, he artfully avoided direct confrontation. It is believed Patrick and those closely associated with him founded approximately three hundred churches and baptized over 120,000 people. Patrick died about 461, but his mission organization was well established and eventually converted all Ireland to Christianity. 
The factual information about Patrick comes from two primary sources--both documents probably written by him in later life--"Confession," a justification of his mission in Ireland, and "Letter to Coroticus," a criticism of a British raid on Ireland. Yet, most of what people think they know of Patrick is legend, such as his banishing snakes from the island. His mission to Ireland was intensely religious, yet he is most widely remembered as an excuse for revelry and entertainment on St. Patrick's Day each year on March 17. 
The Producer of A Moment in Time is Steve Clark. At the University of Richmond, this is Dan Roberts. 
Resources 
Cahill, Thomas. How the Irish Saved Civilization: The Untold Story of Ireland's Heroic Role from the Fall of Rome to the Rise of Medieval Europe. New York: Doubleday, 1996. 
Cagney, Mary. "Patrick the Saint." Christian History, 60.XVII, No. 4 (1998): 10-18. 
"Catholic Online Saints," http://saints.catholic.org/faq.html 
McSorley, Anita McGurn. "The St. Patrick You Never Knew." St. Anthony Messenger Magazine, March 1997. 
"Patrick, Saint." Microsoft Encarta Online Encyclopedia 2001, http://encarta.msn.com (14 Sept. 2001). 
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	A Moment in Time Daily Transcript - 14-021 Gerardus Mercator – Mapmaker Extraordinare I 
14-021 Gerardus Mercator – Mapmaker Extraordinare I 


Lead: Despite the discoveries of explorers such as Christopher Columbus, a true understanding of the shape of the natural world did not immediately emerge. Resistance came from a variety of forces. 
Intro.: A Moment in Time with Dan Roberts. 
Content: As Europe emerged from the medieval period and began the great era of exploration, two great forces served to impede the enormous task facing those who wished to understand, describe, and investigate the world beyond the waters immediately adjacent to the European coast. 
The first impediment to understanding the natural world was the continued dependence upon the writings of second-century Alexandrian astronomer and mathematician, Claudius Ptolemaeus, who in turn was influenced by the geographical speculations of Greek philosopher, Aristotle. In his seminal work, Guide to Geography, that dominated thinking about the world for more than 1500 years, Ptolemy actually projected a world much larger than that of his contemporaries; but his maps were filled with guesswork and his world was still much too small. Despite the findings of explorers such as Christopher Columbus and Ferdinand Magellan, deep into the 1500s, thinkers still depended upon the wrong-headed ideas of Ptolemy. 
The second great force holding back a true understanding of the world was the church. The clerical bureaucracy was convinced that the earth was the center of the universe and that new ideas--those about cultures beyond the confines of Europe and suggestions that the natural world was different from that described in the Bible and church writings--were a threat to their hegemony. 
Helping to overcome Ptolemy’s influence and the church’s resistance to learning and progress were geographers and scientists such as Gerardus Mercator. Mercator was born Gerhard Kremer in Rupelmode, now a part of Belgium, in 1512. He originally studied for the priesthood, attaining a master’s degree in philosophy and humanities from the University of Louvain in 1532, but genuine doubts about his own faith and a growing fascination with geography compelled him in a different direction. 
Next time: A new kind of map. 
Research assistance by Dawn Palmer, at the University of Richmond, this is Dan Roberts. 
Resources 
Bagrow, Leo. History of Cartography. Rev and Enlarged by R.A. Skelton. London: C.A. Watts, 1964. 
Brown, Lloyd Arnold. The Story of Maps. Boston: Little, Brown, 1949. 
Maritime Museum. Gerard Mercator’s Map of the World. Rotterdam, Holland: Gravenhage, 1961. 
Osley, A.D. Mercator: A Monograph of the Lettering of Maps. New York: Watson-Guptill, 1969. 
Penrose, Boies. Travel and Discovery in the Renaissance. Cambridge: Harvard University Press, 1967. 
Raisz, Erwin. General Cartography. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1938. 
Richardson, W.A.R. “Mercator’s Southern Continent: Its Origins, Influence, and Gradual Demise,” Terrae Incognitae 25 (1993): 67-98. 
Skelton, R.A. Decorative Printed Maps of the 15th to 18th Centuries. London: Spring Books, 1952. 
Wilford, John Noble. The Mapmakers. New York: Knopf Publishers, 1981. 
http://www.bookrags.com/biography/gerhardus-mercator/ 
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	A Moment in Time Daily Transcript - 14-097 Race for the Pole: Robert Scott & Roald Amundsen I 
14-097 Race for the Pole: Robert Scott & Roald Amundsen I 

Lead: For more than four centuries prior to 1900, curiosity, necessity, ambition, and economic aspiration had driven the age of discovery. Few places on the globe eluded the explorers. The last great prize was the frozen, barren, and arid continent of Antarctica. 
Intro.: A Moment in Time with Dan Roberts. 
Content: Antarctica is the southernmost continent, the coldest, windiest place on earth with an average interior temperature of -58F°. Ninety-eight percent of the continent, which is twice the size of Australia, is covered by ice sheets formed over millions of years with a thickness of over a mile to about three miles. The ice contains 70% of the world’s fresh water and represents 90% of the world’s ice. 
Although waters surrounding Antarctica are teeming with life--penguins, whales, seals, fish--the heart of the continent is a barren desert, one of the driest places on earth. A day in Antarctica is six months long, from September 21 to March 22. Summer begins in September, winter in March; it is mostly dark in winter and mostly light in summer. Discovered in 1820, designated a continent in the 1840s, by the end of the nineteenth century the waters of Antarctica were regularly visited by commercial whalers and sealers. 
In 1895, the Sixth Geographical Congress, meeting in London, challenged the scientific community to send expeditions to Antarctica and many of the wealthier nations responded. Britain, France, Norway, Germany, Japan, Sweden and Belgium all mounted expeditions, ostensibly for scientific knowledge but also for land claims. The most coveted prize of all, of course, was to be the first to reach the South Pole, the most remote location on earth. This exploratory quest captured the imagination of people everywhere. Explorers, citizens, and governments invested hope and large sums to support these expeditions. Perhaps the most confident country--then at the height of its imperial ambitions--was Great Britain. Britons were certain that the prize would be theirs. Such was not to be. 
Next time: The race to the pole. 
Research assistance by Ann Johnson, at the University of Richmond, this is Dan Roberts. 
Resources 
Flynn, Sian. “The Race to the South Pole.” BBC. 15 Sept. 2008 
. 
Huntford, Roland. The Last Place on Earth. New York: Random House, 1999. 
Thomson, David. Scott, Shackleton and Amundsen: Ambition and Tragedy in the Antarctic. New York: Avalon, 2002. 
“Cool Antarctica.”. 
The Antarctic Connection . 
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	A Moment in Time Daily Transcript - 14-098 Race for the Pole: Robert Scott & Roald Amundsen II 
14-098 Race for the Pole: Robert Scott & Roald Amundsen II 

Lead: By the turn of the twentieth century, most of the globe had been explored. One great prize remained--the South Pole. In the end the race came down to an intense competition between two determined men. 
Intro.: A Moment in Time with Dan Roberts. 
Content: Barren Antarctica is the coldest and iciest place on earth. The terrain is so hostile to human habitation and the distance to the pole so great (roughly 800 miles from the sea) that early expeditions fell short of their goal. In 1902, Arctic explorer and British Naval officer, Robert Falcon Scott led the Discovery Expedition, named for his ship, to Antarctica and came within 400 miles of the pole. Accompanying Scott on this trip were British zoologist Edward Wilson and a young Arctic explorer, Ernest Shackleton. In 1909 Shackleton led his own expedition and came within 111 miles of the pole. 
Scott joined the Royal Navy in 1880. He was a popular public figure, a best-selling author, and was raising money for his second expedition when he heard that his rival Shackleton had failed in his attempt to reach the pole. In June 1910 his second expedition, conveyed on HMS Terra Nova, sailed from London. Although the expedition would concentrate on scientific studies and exploration, its primary goal was to bring home the honor and glory for Great Britain by being the first to reach the South Pole. 
In Melbourne, Australia, during the Terra Nova voyage, Scott received a telegram from Norwegian explorer Roald Amundsen informing him that he, too, was en route to the South Pole. Amundsen’s original intent was to be the first to reach the North Pole; however, when he heard that American Robert Peary had accomplished this feat, Amundsen altered his plans and went for the South Pole instead. 
In January 1911 Scott established his base at McMurdo Sound, an inlet of the western Ross Sea. Amundsen’s base was 400 miles to the east in an inlet on the edge of the Ross Ice Shelf--and sixty miles closer to the pole. Scott, farther away, would follow a known route already pioneered by Shackleton; Amundsen would be crossing unknown territory. Both parties prepared extensively for almost one year, each establishing supply depots to the south with fuel, supplies and food for the long return back from the pole. 
Next Time: Triumph and tragedy. 
At the University of Richmond, this is Dan Roberts. 
Resources 
Flynn, Sian. “The Race to the South Pole.” BBC. 15 Sept. 2008 
. 
Huntford, Roland. The Last Place on Earth. New York: Random House, 1999. 
Thomson, David. Scott, Shackleton and Amundsen: Ambition and Tragedy in the Antarctic. New York: Avalon, 2002. 
“Cool Antarctica.”. 
The Antarctic Connection . 
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	A Moment in Time Daily Transcript - 14-099 Race for the Pole: Robert Scott & Roald Amundsen III 
14-099 Race for the Pole: Robert Scott & Roald Amundsen III 

Lead: By October 1911--early spring in Antarctica--two expeditions, separated by 400 miles of ice, were ready to begin their assault on the South Pole. One would make it. One would not. 
Intro.: A Moment in Time with Dan Roberts. 
Content: On October 20, the four-man party led by Norwegian Roald Amundsen, an experienced Arctic explorer, with four sledges pulled by 52 dogs, began its journey. Twelve days later the team led by Robert Falcon Scott, Amundsen's rival, began its trek borne by dogs, Siberian ponies and motorized sledges. Scott knew of his competitor but he was confident that he would bring home the honor to England of being the first to reach the South Pole. Having led a prior scientific expedition to Antarctica and coming within 400 miles of the pole, Scott had a reputation as a careful and meticulous naval officer. He was a popular figure at home, and most anticipated that he would be the victor. 
Amundsen had arrived in Antarctica early in 1911 and set up a base camp on the Ross Ice Shelf. Over the next several months, before the onset of the bitter Antarctic winter, he established a series of base camps to within 500 miles of the pole. His choice of sled dogs proved to be a fortuitous one, because they could be killed along the way and eaten as food by the other dogs and, in case of an emergency, by humans. Amundsen had encountered good weather for most of the way and only a few natural obstacles. He and his team arrived at the South Pole on December 14, 1911. After three days of exploration in the general vicinity of the pole, they returned to their base camp reaching it at the end of January. 
Scott encountered trouble from the beginning. His motorized sledges broke down almost immediately. The ponies died or had to be shot before they conveyed the party to the pole. An absence of food required that the dog teams be sent back. That left the remaining members of the party having to carry or drag all of their supplies to the pole and back. After all that--in what must have been the expedition's most bitter moment of disappointment--Scott and his companions arrived at the South Pole on January 17, 1912, only to discover that Amundsen had come and gone. They found a Norwegian flag planted in the ice and a letter from Amundsen to Scott. The Brit wrote in his journal, “Great God! This is an awful place and terrible enough for us to have laboured to it without the reward of priority.” 
During the 800-mile return trip, all members of Scott's party perished, either from exhaustion, starvation, hypothermia or scurvy. They died in the midst of a blizzard within eleven miles of the closest cache of supplies. The tent with their frozen bodies was found later in the year, with his records and diaries intact, which gave a complete description of the expedition. 
At the University of Richmond, this is Dan Roberts. 
Resources 
Flynn, Sian. “The Race to the South Pole.” BBC. 15 Sept. 2008 
Huntford, Roland. The Last Place on Earth. New York: Random House, 1999. 
Thomson, David. Scott, Shackleton and Amundsen: Ambition and Tragedy in the Antarctic. New York: Avalon, 2002. 
“Cool Antarctica.”. 
The Antarctic Connection . 
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	A Moment in Time Daily Transcript - 12-013 Charlie Chaplin 
12-013 Charlie Chaplin 

Lead: Few people have left a greater impression on the development of the motion picture business than Charles Spencer Chaplin. He is considered by many to be the greatest comic artist of the screen. 
Intro.: A Moment in Time with Dan Roberts. 
Content: Charlie Chaplin got started in vaudeville. Born in London before the turn of the twentieth century, Chaplin grew up in an acting family and by the age of twelve he was on his own, performing in music halls all over England. On a tour of North America in 1913, he was signed by Mack Sennett of Keystone Films to work in comic pictures at a significant increase in salary. He never looked back. 
Within the next few years, his blend of physical comedy, character development, and effective publicity had made him one of the most popular and wealthiest actors in motion picture history. In 1919, Chaplin threw in with Mary Pickford, Douglas Fairbanks, and D.W. Griffith to establish United Artists, one of the most enduring of Hollywood’s studios. 
His silent films were nearly all box office gold or critical successes, mostly both. In The Tramp, The Vagabond and Shoulder Arms, Chaplin combined comedy and disappointment in love, recurring themes throughout his creative career. He slowly made the transition to sound films, with his most powerful box office success being The Great Dictator in 1940, in which he poked fun at Adolph Hitler and other totalitarians. 
Chaplin’s success as an actor, director and personality did not find a parallel in his personal life. Several marriages, messy relationships, and legal problems diminished his popularity in the 1940s. His left-wing views were unpopular in the McCarthy era and, as a non-U.S. citizen, he was virtually banished from America from the early 1950s until the 1970s. 
Fascination with Chaplin’s work revived in the 1960s, and he returned to the United States to receive much-overdue acclaim in 1972. He died in 1977 in Switzerland. 
Research assistance by John Roach, at the University of Richmond, this is Dan Roberts. 
Resources 
Chaplin, Charles Spencer. My Autobiography. New York: Simon and Schuster, 1964. 
McCabe, John. Charlie Chaplin. Garden City, N.J.: Doubleday, 1978. 
Smith, Julian. Chaplin. Boston: Twayne Publishers, 1984. 
Wenden, David John. The Birth of the Movies. New York: E.P. Dutton, 1974, 1975. 
www.charliechaplin.com 
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	A Moment in Time Daily Transcript - 05-105 Crispus Attucks 
05-105 Crispus Attucks 

Lead: On March 5, 1770, in Boston, Massachusetts, British soldiers led by Captain Preston fired into an unruly crowd of protesters. One of the first to fall was Crispus Attucks. 
Intro: A Moment In Time with Dan Roberts. 
Content: All during the winter and spring of 1770, tension in Boston had been building between citizens and British soldiers sent there to prevent unrest. Many American workers were resentful of the soldiers because, when they were off duty, they would take civilian jobs at cheaper rates. This--plus the general indignation in the city over the presence of the troops--set up one of the first bloody confrontations of the Revolutionary period. 
Crispus Attucks was, at forty-seven, a six-foot-tall drifter. He was a mulatto, a light-skinned black man, born around 1723, and served as a slave for some years but escaped by going to sea. Attucks was well known around the docks and was a powerful, intimidating physical specimen. In the early evening on the day of the so-called Boston Massacre, a crowd began to harass a squad of Brits as they came to rescue one of their comrades surrounded by a mob at the Customs House on King Street. Crispus Attucks was at the head of the crowd. 
At the trial six months later, a slave named Andrew testified that a stout mulatto had weighed in and struck one of the soldiers in the heat of the moment. The soldier turned and fired, several more blasted into the crowd, and soon five men lay dead or wounded. Crispus Attucks was among the first to fall. 
There is little doubt that the crowd provoked the attack. John Adams, defending the soldiers, called the crowd "hooligans, who got what they deserved;" but he would also later say that, "Not the Battle of Lexington nor Bunker Hill, not the surrender of Burgoyne nor Cornwallis were more important events in American history than the battle of King Street on the fifth of March, 1770," and the first to fall at that most singular event was a man of color, Crispus Attucks. 
The producer of A Moment In Time is Steve Clark. At the University of Richmond, this is Dan Roberts. 
Resources 
Bennett, Lerone. Before the Mayflower: A History of Black America. Chicago: Johnson Publishing Company, Inc. 
Foner, Philip S. History of Black Americans: From Africa to the Emergence of the Cotton Kingdom. Westport, Connecticut: Greenwood Press, 1975. 
Franklin, John Hope. From Slavery to Freedom: A History of Negro Americans. New York: Alfred A. Knopf Publishing Company, 1967. 
Toppin, Edgar A. The Black American in United States History. Boston: Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 1973. 
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	A Moment in Time Daily Transcript - 02-150 Atomic Dawn I 
02-150 Atomic Dawn I 

Lead: The road to Hiroshima began in earnest not on Tinian, or in Los Alamos, or Chicago, or Princeton, but in prewar Nazi Berlin. 
Intro: A Moment In Time with Dan Roberts. 
Content: By the mid-1930s, scientists had determined that the nucleus of the atom was not a single unit of matter but was made up of protons and neutrons. Neutrons, because they have no electrical charge, were being used to explore the nature of the atomic nucleus. The Italian physicist Enrico Fermi began bombarding various elements with neutrons in 1934 and had concluded that relatively moderate changes could be made in the nucleus of one substance if hit with streams of neutrons from another. 
Similar experiments along the same lines had revealed a strange development. When uranium was subjected to a stream of neutrons, the results indicated the presence of another much lighter element. This discovery, at the time largely unnoticed, marked the beginning of the age of nuclear fission. 
At the Kaiser Wilhelm Institute for Chemistry in Dahlem, a suburb of Berlin, Otto Hahn, one of the world's most respected scientists, and his associate Fritz Strassmann, had been trying to determine the nature of this mysterious element. On December 17, 1938, at about 10:30 in the evening, the Hahn team began hitting uranium with neutrons. Uranium has an atomic weight of 92. If Fermi was right, the process should chip off a neutron or two and produce a substance only slightly smaller, something with the weight of 88 or 90. But that night, once again, they came up with this mysterious substance which they confirmed to be barium, a much lighter element with the atomic weight of 56. 
Hahn checked these findings with Lise Meitner, a colleague in Stockholm, Sweden, and she suggested that perhaps the neutrons had split the uranium atoms. This was in violation of accepted principles of physics at the time, and Meitner and Hahn were reluctant to embrace such a conclusion. But subsequent tests confirmed the theory. Along with the transformation came an extraordinary release of energy. For the scientists, it took only a short leap of imagination to realize the potential for creating a weapon of terrible power. 
Next time: A controlled and self-sustaining nuclear reaction. 
The Producer of A Moment In Time is Steve Clark. At the University of Richmond, this is Dan Roberts. 
Resources 
Christman, Al. "The Atom Bomb: Making it Happen," American Heritage of Invention and Technology 11 (1, Summer, 1995), 22-35. 
Cooper, Dan. "The Atom Bomb: Making it Possible, "American Heritage of Invention and Technology 11 (1, Summer, 1995), 10-21. 
Genion, William, editor. The Affects of the Atomic Bombs on Hiroshima and Nagasaki by the United States Strategic Bombing Survey. Santa Fe: Genion Publishing, 1973. 
Groves, Leslie R. Now It Can Be Told. New York: Harper & Row Publishers, 1962. 
Maddox, Robert James, " The Biggest Decision: Why We Had to Drop the Atomic Bomb," American Heritage 46 (3, May/June, 1995), 70-77. 
Stehling, Kurt R. "World Shaking Week in December: When the Work in Quiet Lab in Berlin and a Walk in the Snow in Sweden Opened Up the Pandora's Box of Fission," Smithsonian 4 (9, December, 1973), 88-89. 
Wyden, Peter. Day One: Before Hiroshima and After. New York: Simon and Schuster Publishing Company, 1984. 
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Lead: Scientists had discovered the atom's nucleus, had determined that it was made up of protons and neutrons, and had split it. But it remained to put these discoveries to use. In the early 1940s, a team under Enrico Fermi at the University of Chicago set out to create a sustained nuclear reaction. 
Intro: A Moment In Time with Dan Roberts. 
Content: From an early age Enrico Fermi demonstrated a quick grasp of science. Born in Rome, as a child he began to read everything on which he could get his hands. His entrance exam to college was considered prodigious and, within eight years after high school, he had received his doctorate and was the youngest full professor the in the history of the University of Rome. Fermi combined a deep interest in theoretical physics with a practical orientation to experimenting. Having both tendencies was rare. 
By the mid-1930s, Fermi was applying his skills and intellect to examining the atom's nucleus and came very close to discovering the process of nuclear fission. Awarded the Nobel Prize in Physics for 1938, Fermi used the trip to Stockholm as a way of accomplishing his escape from Mussolini's Fascist Italy. He began his stay in America by teaching at Columbia University. 
Meanwhile, German radiochemist Otto Hahn and his team had irradiated uranium and produced barium. Transforming one element into another with radiation had already been done, but up until then the substances created were close to the original on the periodic table. The creation of barium, a much lighter element, meant that the uranium nucleus had been split. The further discovery that spectacular amounts of energy had been released in the process had important implications for the creation of an enormous source of power. Fermi set out to tap this fountainhead of energy. To do that, he needed to create a sustained nuclear reaction without blowing up everything in sight. 
On December 2, 1942, a team lead by Fermi at Chicago did just that. In a transformed squash court under the university's football stands, a carbon rod was withdrawn from a huge pile of carbon logs studded with uranium pellets. Instruments told the story; a sustained and controlled nuclear reaction was in progress. 
Next time: From theory to bomb. 
The producer of A Moment In Time is Steve Clark. At the University of Richmond, this is Dan Roberts. 
Resources 
Christman, Al. "The Atom Bomb: Making it Happen," American Heritage of Invention and Technology 11 (1, Summer, 1995), 22-35. 
Cooper, Dan. "The Atom Bomb: Making it Possible, "American Heritage of Invention and Technology 11 (1, Summer, 1995), 10-21. 
Genion, William, editor. The Affects of the Atomic Bombs on Hiroshima and Nagasaki by the United States Strategic Bombing Survey. Santa Fe: Genion Publishing, 1973. 
Groves, Leslie R. Now It Can Be Told. New York: Harper & Row Publishers, 1962. 
Maddox, Robert James, " The Biggest Decision: Why We Had to Drop the Atomic Bomb," American Heritage 46 (3, May/June, 1995), 70-77. 
Stehling, Kurt R. "World Shaking Week in December: When the Work in Quiet Lab in Berlin and a Walk in the Snow in Sweden Opened Up the Pandora's Box of Fission," Smithsonian 4 (9, December, 1973), 88-89. 
Wyden, Peter. Day One: Before Hiroshima and After. New York: Simon and Schuster Publishing Company, 1984. 
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	A Moment in Time Daily Transcript - 02-152 Atomic Dawn III 

Lead: With the first sustained nuclear reaction in December, 1942, the Roosevelt administration decided to harvest the energy of the atom by creating a weapon so powerful that it might possibly bring an end to World War II. 
Intro: A Moment in Time with Dan Roberts. 
Content: The executive director of the Manhattan Engineer District, the project to build the bomb, was Brigadier General Leslie Groves. He in turn chose J. Robert Oppenheimer, Professor of Physics at the University of California at Berkeley, who assembled the team that solved the theoretical and scientific problems associated with the bomb. Groves also selected a naval ordnance officer, Captain William S. "Deak" Parsons, to tackle the construction and delivery of the weapon. 
First conceived by Hungarian physicist Leo Szilard, the atomic bomb--if it were to be more that just a very expensive dud--had to bring together a mass of uranium large enough to achieve a sustained reaction and quick enough for it to reach critical mass, that point at which enriched uranium-235 blows up with terrifying force. To reach this goal, Parsons and Oppenheimer took two different paths. The first concentrated on a bomb that would use the very small amount of uranium-235 that could be purified, given the technology of the early 1940s. They devised a bomb, consisting basically of a gun inside the bomb casing, that would fire one shaped charge of uranium into another, achieve critical mass, and blow up. Eventually, the bomb that was dropped on Hiroshima--named Little Boy--used this glorified gun technology. 
The second path chose plutonium, a refined form of uranium which was relatively more plentiful--but unfortunately would not respond to the gun method of achieving critical mass. Because of the makeup of plutonium, the gun could not get enough of it together quick enough to do much more than blow up a house, certainly not a city. The solution was an implosion bomb. Instead of a long gun, the plutonium bomb--named Fat Boy--was round with explosive charges shaped around a plutonium core about the size of a grapefruit. When the charges went off, they compressed the plutonium into critical mass and it went off. The first atomic bomb test in New Mexico on July 16, 1945 was of this variety, as was the second bomb dropped on Nagasaki a month later. 
The Manhattan Project was one of the great intellectual and technical achievements of the twentieth century. It cost a billion dollars, involved thousands of manhours but, in the end, achieved its purpose: the end of World War II. 
At the University of Richmond, this is Dan Roberts. 
Resources 
Christman, Al. "The Atom Bomb: Making it Happen," American Heritage of Invention and Technology 11 (1, Summer, 1995), 22-35. 
Cooper, Dan. "The Atom Bomb: Making it Possible, "American Heritage of Invention and Technology 11 (1, Summer, 1995), 10-21. 
Genion, William, editor. The Affects of the Atomic Bombs on Hiroshima and Nagasaki by the United States Strategic Bombing Survey. Santa Fe: Genion Publishing, 1973. 
Groves, Leslie R. Now It Can be Told. New York: Harper&Row Publishers, 1962. 
Maddox, Robert James, " The Biggest Decision: Why We Had to Drop the Atomic Bomb," American Heritage 46 (3, May/June, 1995), 70-77. 
Stehling, Kurt R. "World Shaking Week in December: When the Work in Quiet Lab in Berlin and a Walk in the Snow in Sweden Opened Up the Pandora's Box of Fission," Smithsonian 4 (9, December, 1973), 88-89. 
Wyden, Peter. Day One: Before Hiroshima and After. New York: Simon and Schuster Publishing Company, 1984. 
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	A Moment in Time Daily Transcript - 02-153 Atomic Dawn IV 

Lead: On July 16, 1945, in the high desert of New Mexico near the small village of Los Alamos, the first atomic bomb was exploded. The thing worked. Harry Truman had to decide what to do with it. 
Intro: A Moment In Time with Dan Roberts. 
Content: Just after taking office on the day of the death of Franklin Roosevelt, President Harry Truman was approached by Secretary of War Henry Stimson. The latter spoke briefly of a new weapon nearing completion, a new explosive of almost unbelievable power. Truman did not know what he was talking about. Roosevelt had kept his vice president in the dark about a subject that was to provoke one of the earliest and most important decisions of Truman's presidency--whether to use the atomic bomb on Japan or not. As the days passed and more information was made available, Truman slowly realized that within months he would have to determine how this new weapon would be used. Scientists had solved most of the problems with the device, and he had only a few weeks to make up his mind. 
Winston Churchill later wrote of a conversation he had during this period in which Truman was tormented by "the terrible responsibilities that rested upon him in regard to the unlimited effusions of American blood." 
Truman was also very much aware of Japanese determination to defend their homeland to the last. Though there was a peace faction in the Tokyo government that wished to end the war under certain conditions, they were in the minority. Most of the Japanese leadership was committed to a fiery response to any invasion of the Japanese home islands. They proved it at Okinawa. Since the Allied landings on April 1, 1945, the Japanese had fought with such savagery, including kamikaze attacks, that they had inflicted nearly 50,000 casualties. 
Truman's advisors estimated that as many as one million U.S. casualties would result from an invasion of Japan. This prospect was enough to compel the president to act. When the Japanese rejected the Allied ultimatum issued from Potsdam, Germany on July 26, 1946, Truman gave his okay to use the bombs. Within the month, the cities of Nagasaki and Hiroshima had been incinerated. 
The producer of A Moment In Time is Steve Clark. At the University of Richmond, this is Dan Roberts. 
Resources 
Christman, Al. "The Atom Bomb: Making it Happen," American Heritage of Invention and Technology 11 (1, Summer, 1995), 22-35. 
Cooper, Dan. "The Atom Bomb: Making it Possible, "American Heritage of Invention and Technology 11 (1, Summer, 1995), 10-21. 
Genion, William, editor. The Affects of the Atomic Bombs on Hiroshima and Nagasaki by the United States Strategic Bombing Survey. Santa Fe: Genion Publishing, 1973. 
Groves, Leslie R. Now It Can Be Told. New York: Harper & Row Publishers, 1962. 
Maddox, Robert James, " The Biggest Decision: Why We Had to Drop the Atomic Bomb," American Heritage 46 (3, May/June, 1995), 70-77. 
Stehling, Kurt R. "World Shaking Week in December: When the Work in Quiet Lab in Berlin and a Walk in the Snow in Sweden Opened Up the Pandora's Box of Fission," Smithsonian 4 (9, December, 1973), 88-89. 
Wyden, Peter. Day One: Before Hiroshima and After. New York: Simon and Schuster Publishing Company, 1984. 
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	A Moment in Time Daily Transcript - 02-076 The Great Sphinx of Giza 

Lead: In recent years, the Great Sphinx of Giza has shown signs of advanced deterioration. 
Intro: A Moment in Time with Dan Roberts. 
Content: The Sphinx has fired the imagination of poets, scholars, and tourists for generations. Recently stones have begun falling off this massive statue: masonry veneer from the left hind paw in 1981, and a huge piece of bedrock from the right shoulder in 1988. This has led to speculation that the giant lion-shaped figure is actually much older than had been estimated. Heretofore, archeologists have dated the Sphinx as originating in the Old Kingdom about 2500 years B.C. The recent decay, however, has led some scholars to assert that the monument may date back to 5000 to 7000 years B.C. 
While this dispute remains unresolved, it has led to heightened interest in the origins of the statue and questions as to what purpose it served in the cultic life of the ancient Egyptian religion. The Sphinx sits within a cluster of burial monuments and temples near Giza, just south of the Nile delta. The three giant pyramids of Pharaohs Khufu, Khafre, and Menkaure dominate the skyline. Each of the giant structures has a long causeway or narrow ceremonial boulevard that runs from a temple beside the pyramid down to another temple close to the river itself. This last is called the Valley Temple and serves as an entrance to each pyramid complex. 
The Giant Sphinx, which is the largest and only remaining of several similar statues, is close to the Valley Temple and the causeway of Pharaoh Khafre. This suggests that Khafre built it as a giant sentinel to guard the Nile entrance to his pyramid. It is carved directly from the rock. Ancient quarrymen cut a horseshoe-shaped ditch and isolated a huge rectangular block of limestone. From that they began to shape the gigantic lion with its massive limbs stretching out in testimony to the power and wealth of its creator. Topping the statue was a human-shaped head, quite possibly modeled after that of Khafre himself. 
The actual use to which the Sphinx was put remains a mystery. No Old Kingdom texts refer to it or its temple, but it will continue to fascinate and intrigue scholars and visitors alike as archeologists attempt to halt the damage caused with the passage of time. 
At the University of Richmond, this is Dan Roberts. 
Resources 
Hawass, Zahi and Mark Lehner. "The Sphinx: Who built it, And why?" Archeology, September and October (1994), 30-41. 
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	A Moment in Time Daily Transcript - 01-147 The Haymarket Affair I 

Lead: In early May 1886 in the Haymarket area of Chicago, a bloody confrontation occurred between police and workers. There followed the first "Red Scare" in American social history. 
Intro: A Moment In Time with Dan Roberts. 
Content: The so-called Haymarket Affair began on May 3 when Chicago police attacked a crowd of strikers at the McCormick Reaper Works, killing and wounding several men. The next night anarchists held a protest rally near Haymarket Square in the commercial area of the city. Just as the meeting was breaking up because of an approaching storm, a squad of police arrived and ordered the crowd to disperse. The speaker, Samuel Fielden, protested but was getting down from the wagon to comply when someone threw a bomb into the police ranks. The officers lost control and starting firing in all directions, killing and wounding civilians as well as policemen. 
Chicago that spring had been in the grip of wide-scale labor protest focusing on demands for an eight-hour work day, and labor associations from across the political spectrum were organizing these protests. Some of the most effective work was done by the anarchists--a group of libertarian socialists who in part took their philosophical inspiration from Mikail Bakunin, an opponent of Karl Marx’s insistence on a centralized and disciplined Communist party. They wanted a society based on voluntary cooperation of free individuals with neither government nor private property. Within their ranks, however, there were many who spoke the rhetoric of violence and more than a few who were quite willing to use it. 
The police were provoked by almost constant confrontation with labor agitators that spring. They were led by Inspector John Bonfield and excited by inflammatory rhetoric and some of the more extreme propaganda of the anarchists. Bonfield had been fretting under the moderate policy of Mayor Carter H. Harrison who believed that the Constitution demanded that police should control and channel protest rather than suppress it. The inspector disagreed, and that night he did something about it. When the smoke cleared, sixty-seven policemen lay wounded, many of them by shots from their own ranks; later eight died. A significant number of civilians were also among the casualties. 
Next time: The Haymarket Anarchists on Trial. 
The producer of A Moment In Time is Steve Clark. At the University of Richmond, this is Dan Roberts. 
Resources 
Avrich, Paul. The Haymarket Tragedy. Princeton: Princeton University Press, 1984. 
David, Henry. The History of the Haymarket Affair: A Study in the American Social-Revolutionary and Labor Movements. New York: Russell and Russell Publishing Company, 1958. 
Roediger, Dave and Franklin Rosemont, Editors. Haymarket Scrapbook. Chicago: C.H. Kerr Publishing Company, 1986. 
Schindler, Burton. "The Haymarket Bomb," American History Illustrated 1986 21(4):20-27. 
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	A Moment in Time Daily Transcript - 01-147 The Haymarket Affair I 

Lead: In early May 1886 in the Haymarket area of Chicago, a bloody confrontation occurred between police and workers. There followed the first "Red Scare" in American social history. 
Intro: A Moment In Time with Dan Roberts. 
Content: The so-called Haymarket Affair began on May 3 when Chicago police attacked a crowd of strikers at the McCormick Reaper Works, killing and wounding several men. The next night anarchists held a protest rally near Haymarket Square in the commercial area of the city. Just as the meeting was breaking up because of an approaching storm, a squad of police arrived and ordered the crowd to disperse. The speaker, Samuel Fielden, protested but was getting down from the wagon to comply when someone threw a bomb into the police ranks. The officers lost control and starting firing in all directions, killing and wounding civilians as well as policemen. 
Chicago that spring had been in the grip of wide-scale labor protest focusing on demands for an eight-hour work day, and labor associations from across the political spectrum were organizing these protests. Some of the most effective work was done by the anarchists--a group of libertarian socialists who in part took their philosophical inspiration from Mikail Bakunin, an opponent of Karl Marx’s insistence on a centralized and disciplined Communist party. They wanted a society based on voluntary cooperation of free individuals with neither government nor private property. Within their ranks, however, there were many who spoke the rhetoric of violence and more than a few who were quite willing to use it. 
The police were provoked by almost constant confrontation with labor agitators that spring. They were led by Inspector John Bonfield and excited by inflammatory rhetoric and some of the more extreme propaganda of the anarchists. Bonfield had been fretting under the moderate policy of Mayor Carter H. Harrison who believed that the Constitution demanded that police should control and channel protest rather than suppress it. The inspector disagreed, and that night he did something about it. When the smoke cleared, sixty-seven policemen lay wounded, many of them by shots from their own ranks; later eight died. A significant number of civilians were also among the casualties. 
Next time: The Haymarket Anarchists on Trial. 
The producer of A Moment In Time is Steve Clark. At the University of Richmond, this is Dan Roberts. 
Resources 
Avrich, Paul. The Haymarket Tragedy. Princeton: Princeton University Press, 1984. 
David, Henry. The History of the Haymarket Affair: A Study in the American Social-Revolutionary and Labor Movements. New York: Russell and Russell Publishing Company, 1958. 
Roediger, Dave and Franklin Rosemont, Editors. Haymarket Scrapbook. Chicago: C.H. Kerr Publishing Company, 1986. 
Schindler, Burton. "The Haymarket Bomb," American History Illustrated 1986 21(4):20-27. 
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	A Moment in Time Daily Transcript - 01-148 The Haymarket Affair II 
Lead: In early May 1886 in the Haymarket area of Chicago, a bloody confrontation occurred between police and workers. There followed the first "Red Scare" in American social history. 
Intro: A Moment In Time with Dan Roberts. 
Content: The violence occurred at the end of an initially peaceful rally called by the anarchist movement to protest the attack by police on strikers at the McCormick Reaper factory the previous day. Several of their number had been killed or wounded and union members were quite angry. As the meeting was breaking up, the police arrived in strength. Someone tossed a bomb into the police ranks, and the police started firing--killing civilians and their own men as well. 
Chicago and the rest of the country erupted in a frenzy of panic. Whipped up by fear of anarchist insurrection, newspapers and public officials called for immediate suppression of radical sedition. Soon the angry voices crowded out civilized discussion, and often those who called for moderation or defended the right of peaceful protest were denounced. Rumors circulated that anarchists were plotting to blow up public buildings and bridges; for months the country was in the grip of hysteria. 
In Chicago the police, excited by calls for revenge and perhaps not a little eager to distract attention away from their own lack of discipline on that fatal evening, were busy--not pursuing the one who threw the bomb but arresting anarchists, radicals, and even ordinary labor leaders who had nothing to do with the rally. 
They never caught the bomber, but eventually eight Chicago anarchists were brought to trial. In proceedings that have been almost universally condemned as a travesty of justice, they were all convicted of murder. After appeal, four were hanged, one committed suicide, and three were sentenced to long jail terms. Six years later. Governor John Peter Altgeld reviewed the case and pardoned the survivors. He vigorously criticized the judge and found that the evidence did not show that any of the eight anarchists had been involved in the bombing. 
The Haymarket Affair became the focus for much turmoil in American society at the time. It provoked bitter reaction against radicalism, the huge influx of so-called "foreign immigrants," and the influence of labor unions. It divided the nation and helped define loyalties at a critical juncture in the social history of the United States. 
The producer of A Moment In Time is Steve Clark. At the University of Richmond, this is Dan Roberts. 
Resources 
Avrich, Paul. The Haymarket Tragedy. Princeton: Princeton University Press, 1984. 
David, Henry. The History of the Haymarket Affair: A Study in the American Social-Revolutionary and Labor Movements. New York: Russell and Russell Publishing Company, 1958. 
Roediger, Dave and Franklin Rosemont, Editors. Haymarket Scrapbook. Chicago: C.H. Kerr Publishing Company, 1986. 
Schindler, Burton. "The Haymarket Bomb," American History Illustrated 1986 21(4):20-27. 
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	A Moment in Time Daily Transcript - 14-083 Virginia Dare 

Lead: On August 18, 1587, the first child of English parentage was born in the New World. The fate of tiny Virginia Dare is caught up in one of history’s great mysteries--The Lost Colony. 
Intro.: A Moment in Time with Dan Roberts. 
Content: Optimistic about successful colonization of the New World, one of English Queen Elizabeth’s favorites, Sir Walter Raleigh, attempted expeditions to Virginia in the 1580s. The first failed but he sent a second in 1587. This group of 117--including men, women and children--departed Plymouth on May 8. Their intended destination was farther north in the Chesapeake region but--for reasons not completely clear, possibly due to hurricane season--the pilot refused to continue and in mid-July dropped them on Roanoke Island just off what would become the Carolina mainland. 
The governor of the colony was John White, illustrator, mapmaker and explorer. White’s illustrations of the landscape and Native Americans from the first trip are found today in many American history books. Among the colonists were White’s daughter, Elinor White Dare, and her husband, Ananias Dare, White’s assistant. One month after the landing, baby Virginia Dare was born on August 18 and christened on the Sunday following. 
Ten days later Grandfather White returned to England to bring back needed supplies and new recruits. What happened to little Virginia and her parents remains a mystery. White was unable to communicate with or return to the colony for three years and, once there, found the settlement abandoned. The only clues were the word “CROATOAN” etched on a palisade cross-member and the letters “CRO” carved into a tree. 
Research assistance by Ann Johnson, at the University of Richmond, this is Dan Roberts. 
Resources 
Devine, Robert A., et al. America Past and Present. New York: Longman, Inc., 1998. 
Fort Raleigh National Historic Site. Historic Handbook 16. Dec. 2, 2002. 
Horn, James. A Land as God Make It: Jamestown and the Birth of America. New York: Basic Books, 2005. 
National Park Service. “Roanoke Revisited Heritage Education Program.” 
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	A Moment in Time Daily Transcript - 02-185 George and Sally I 

Lead: It could have been a fatal scandal. Before his marriage, George Washington fell head over heels in love with a married woman. 
Intro.: A Moment in Time with Dan Roberts. 
Content: For many Americans, George Washington is an icon frozen in the distant past--revered, untouchable and, therefore, not a little unreal. Yet, as a national leader, he was somewhat embarrassed by the adoration heaped on him. 
George Washington was no icon, however. He was a real human being with faults and failures, with temptations and struggles, with triumphs and disappointments. As a young man, he took up the profession of land surveyor and in the 1750s was hired by Thomas Lord Fairfax, the sixth Baron Fairfax of Cameron, the only English peer to take up residency in America. Washington helped survey Fairfax' estates in the northern reaches of the Shenandoah Valley, over five million acres. In the course of this work, the young Washington grew close to the Fairfax family, particularly to George William and his beautiful and vivacious wife, Sally Cary Fairfax. 
Washington in his teens and early twenties was a ruggedly handsome man, blue-gray eyes, reddish brown hair, nearly two hundred pounds on a six-foot frame. He was quite the romantic and cut a swath through Virginia society, courting numerous young ladies, falling for some, and having to endure not a few refusals to his offer of marriage. Betsy Fauntleroy turned him down twice, as did the New York heiress, Mary Philipse. Woodrow Wilson said of Washington at this period, "He had the blood of a lover beyond his fellows." One of those who turned him down was Mary Cary, the sister of Sally Fairfax. Sometime before 1755 his attraction to Mary--and many others--was transferred to her older sister, the wife of George William Fairfax who had become one of Washington's best friends. 
Next time: Affection from Afar. 
At the University of Richmond, this is Dan Roberts. 
Resources 
Barrett, Wayne. "George and Betsy and Polly and Patsy and 
Sally...and Sally...and Sally," Smithsonian 4 (8, November, 
1973), 90-99. 
Boller, Paul F., Jr. Presidential Wives. New York: Oxford 
University Press, 1988. 
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	A Moment in Time Daily Transcript - 02-186 George and Sally II 

Lead: In the mid-1750s, the young and dashing militia officer, George Washington, fell in love with the wife of one of his best friends. 
Intro.: A Moment in Time with Dan Roberts. 
Content: Sally Cary Fairfax came from one of the oldest families in Virginia. She was articulate and cultured, a handsome woman with a sparkling personality who lived with her husband George William Fairfax at Belvoir--the Fairfax estate not far from Mount Vernon, the home Washington had inherited from his half-brother. Their correspondence began in the spring of 1755 and, over a three-year span, letters found their way to and from Washington who was posted to various military forts on the frontier. Their notes, often sent through third parties, were discreet but little was left to the imagination. She had captured his heart and was herself taken by this young man. Once, when her husband was in England and George was alone and convalescing from a protracted illness at Mount Vernon, he wrote her a long and intricate letter, filled with caveats and, on the surface, innocent statements. Perhaps innocent...but the stated purpose of the letter was just to borrow a recipe for jelly. In a letter sent to Belvoir from Fort Cumberland shortly before his marriage to Martha Custis, he wrote, "You have drawn me, my dear madam, into an honest confession of a simple fact...The world has no business to know the object of my love, declared in this manner to you..." 
Such affection, declared from afar, could go nowhere. She was a married woman and he a man who valued his honorable reputation. In March 1758 he met and sought the hand of Martha Dandridge Custis, a freshly widowed mother of two, one of the wealthiest women in Virginia. Blocked from pursuing his heart's inclination, he made an excellent choice. Perhaps reflecting on how life had forced a change of direction, he later wrote, "Love is a mighty pretty thing but it is too dainty a food to live on alone, a partner should have good sense, a good disposition, a good reputation, and financial means." Martha had those in great abundance. 
In 1773 George William and Sally left Belvoir for England, never to return. The Fairfaxes were loyalists and were dispossessed of a good measure of their Virginia property upon the American victory. George loved his wife and was loyal to her until the end; however, he continued to have a lifelong sentimental affection for Sally Fairfax. Just before his death, he resumed their correspondence after a twenty-five year break. In one letter he confessed that, though he had a busy life, all those events had failed to eradicate from his mind "the recollection of those happy moments, the happiest in my life, which I have enjoyed in your company." 
At the University of Richmond, this is Dan Roberts. 
Resources 
Barrett, Wayne. "George and Betsy and Polly and Patsy and Sally...and Sally...and Sally," Smithsonian 4 (8, November, 1973), 90-99. 
Boller, Paul F., Jr. Presidential Wives. New York: Oxford University Press, 1988. 
Copyright 2010 by Daniel M. Roberts, Jr. 
spc111610css121910
 
	A Moment in Time Daily Transcript - 15-105 Making of Santa Claus I 

Lead: One of the most beloved legendary figures of the western world is Santa Claus. His legend originated in fourth-century southwest Asia Minor, which is present-day Turkey. 
Intro.: A Moment in Time with Dan Roberts. 
Content: The tradition of Santa Claus has its genesis in various customs of different cultures throughout the world. However, the greatest influence came from a real person--a young monk named Nicholas who served as a priest and later a bishop in the town of Myra on the Mediterranean seacoast. 
Two hundred years after his death, he was recognized as a saint by the Catholic Church--Saint Nicholas. Historians actually know few details about his life, but it seems that he was much admired for his kindness, piety and charity. These characteristics became legendary and the legends began to grow and spread--St. Nicholas tossing bags of gold through windows to needy children, St. Nicholas intervening to save children and sailors from death, St. Nicholas saving three sisters from being sold into slavery or perhaps prostitution by their father (by providing a dowry for each so the sisters could find suitable husbands). As the legends spread and grew, Nicholas eventually became the protector of many groups of people in need . . . and even the performer of miracles. 
December 6, the anniversary of St. Nicholas’ death, became his feast day, and many Europeans marked the date by giving presents or treats to children. After the Protestant Reformation, Catholic traditions--including the veneration of St. Nicholas--did not survive in many parts of Europe, particularly with Puritans and Protestant reformers in England. The legend of St. Nicholas, though, blended with Christmas celebrations and with local customs in Germany, Ireland, Scandinavia, and particularly in Holland where the feast day continued to be celebrated. In 1624 Saint Nicholas came to America with the Dutch colony founded on the mouth of the Hudson River in what is present-day New York. 
Next Time: St. Nicholas Grows Tall and Gains Weight. 
At the University of Richmond, this is Dan Roberts. 
Resources 
Burrows, Edwin G. and Mike Wallace. Gotham: A History of New York City to 1898. 
New York: Oxford University Press, 2000. 
Devine, Robert A., et al. America Past and Present. New York: Longman, Inc., 1998. 
Federer, William J. There Really is a Santa Claus: The History of St. Nicholas and Christmas Holiday. St. Louis: Amerisearch, Inc. 2002. 
Seal, Jeremy. Nicholas: The Epic Journey from Saint to Santa Claus. New York: Bloomsbury, 2005. 
St. Nicholas Center. 10 September 2009 < http://www.stnicholascenter.org/Brix?pageID=38>. 
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	A Moment in Time Daily Transcript - 15-106 Making of Santa Claus II 

Lead: It took 1500 years and the customs and traditions from many lands to turn the mythical and vaguely historical figure of Saint Nicholas into the beloved and legendary character we know today as Santa Claus. 
Intro.: A Moment in Time with Dan Roberts. 
Content: Although the myth of Santa Claus has roots in a real person--Nicholas, an early Catholic bishop from the ancient city of Myra in southwest Asia Minor--our modern-day Santa Claus is actually a blend of religious and secular customs and traditions from various parts of the western world. 
Immigrants settling in America from the early 1600s brought various Christmas traditions: the Germans brought decorated trees; the Irish brought the Gaelic custom of lighted window candles and a door wreath of holly; and the Scandinavians brought their tradition of a gift-giving gnome who lived in the attic and puckishly left goodies and gifts in shoes. 
The Dutch, though, brought their beloved St. Nicholas as “Sinter Klaas” and the custom of celebrating his feast day on December 6. On the eve of this day, children were visited by the robe-wearing saint who would leave gifts or treats. English-speaking children 